ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COVM TTEE
April 14, 2010
8:38 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representative Tamm e W/ son, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 172(FIN) am

“"An Act establishing the Alaska Health Care Conmi ssion in the

Department of Health and Social Services; and providing for
effective date.”

- MOVED HCS CSSB 172(HSS) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 172

SHORT TITLE: ALASKA HEALTH CARE COWM SSI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) OLSON

03/ 27/ 09 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 27/ 09 (S) HSS, FIN

04/ 17/ 09 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 17/ 09 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 18/ 09 (S) HSS AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 18/ 09 (S Bills Previously Heard/ Schedul ed
02/ 03/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 03/ 10 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 03/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 10/ 10 (9 HSS AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/10/ 10 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 10/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 17/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

an

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- April 14, 2010



03/ 17/ 10 (S) Moved CSSB 172(HSS) Qut of Committee

03/ 17/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 18/ 10 (S) HSS RPT CS 3DP 1NR SAME TI TLE
03/ 18/ 10 (S) DP: DAVIS, ELLIS, PASKVAN

03/ 18/ 10 (S) NR. DYSON

04/ 07/ 10 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 07/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 07/ 10 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

W TNESS REG STER

DENI SE LI CCl OLI, Staff

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 172, on behalf of the prine
sponsor .

WARD B. HURLBURT, M D.

Director and Chief Medical Oficer

Di vision of Public Health (DPS)

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussion of SB 172.

W LDA LAUGHLI N, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of SB 172.

WAYNE STEPHENS, President and CEO

Al aska State Chanber O Comrerce;

Menmber; Al aska Health Care Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 172.

MR BRI AN SAYLOR, Ph.D., Retired
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 172.

DEB ERI CKSON, Executive Director

Al aska Health Care Conm ssion ( AHCC)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- April 14, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of SB 172.

LI Z CLEMENT, Staff

Representati ve Bob Herron

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussion of SB 172.

JILL LEW S, Deputy Director - Juneau

Di vision of Public Health (DPS)

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
SB 172.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:38: 36 AM

CO CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 8: 38 a. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, G ssna, Lynn, T. WIson, and
Hol mes were present at the call to order.

8:39:34 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 172(FIN) am "An Act establishing the
Al aska Health Care Conmission in the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services; and providing for an effective date."

8:39:49 AM

DENISE LICCIOLl, Staff to Senator Donny O son, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, paraphrased from the sponsor statenent, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Al aska is currently facing serious healthcare cost,
access and quality issues. Between 1991 and 2005,
health care expenditures in our state nore than
tripled from$1.6 billion to $5.3 billion. Costs are
expected to double again by 2013 to over $10 billion.
Al levels of governnent — state, local, and federal -
are affected, and Al aska’ s econony cannot sustain this

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- April 14, 2010



inflationary growth. The purpose of SB 172 is to
establish in statute the Al aska Health Care Conmmi ssion
to address the need for health care reformin our
state. This issue is conplex and broad in scope, and
cannot be dealt with adequately unless we have a

per manent body to plan and follow through for |ong
range conprehensive health care reform

The two nobst recent groups to work on the issue of
health care reformin Al aska, the Al aska Health Care
Roundt abl e (2005) and the Al aska Health Care
Strategi es Pl anning Council (2007), both reconmended
that a permanent body be established to address the
probl em of health care reform The Roundtabl e (which
met for 2 years) and the Planning Council (which net
for 6 nonths) recogni zed that the problemis too great
to be effectively addressed through a short-term ad-
hoc body.

The Al aska Heal th Care Comm ssion would be established
in the Departnment of Health And Social Services, and
woul d consi st of a ten menber body including public
officials and private citizens. Representatives from
both the executive and | egislative branches of state
government are included, as well as citizens
representing the private business sector, the health
care community, and consuners. Three nmenbers are to be
ex officio appointees fromthe |l egislature and the
governor’s office. The conposition and small size
woul d enabl e efficient and effective teamwrk and

deci si on-maki ng, while bring a bal ance of viewpoints
and perspectives.

The comm ssion would provide its recommendati ons and
support the devel opnent of a statew de plan to address
the quality, accessibility, and availability of health
care for all citizens of the State. A plan for reform
wi |l be based on education, sustainability, nmanagenent
efficiency, health care effectiveness, private-public
partnershi ps, research, personal responsibility and

i ndi vi dual choi ce.

Al aska’s need for healthcare reformis pressing and
nmust be dealt with thoroughly and efficiently, with a
| ong range vi ew towards neani ngful and |asting change.
The Al aska Heal th Care Comm ssion would play an
inportant role in this process, and it is essential

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- April 14, 2010



that we nake it a pernanent conponent of the
Department of Health and Social Services, so that
present as well as future issues with Al aska’s
heal t hcare systens can be better anticipated,
under st ood and addressed.

8:44: 47 AM

M5. LICCI OLl concluded by stating that the problem is pressing
and health care reform nust address present and future issues.
The Al aska Health Care Conmi ssion would play an inportant role
in that process.

8:45: 28 AM
CO CHAIR KELLER referred to page 3, line 23, and pointed out
that "insurance" was added after "care" which would need to be

anended in the bill.
8:46: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to |anguage in paragraph (F),
whi ch read, "one nenber who represents the health care industry
in the state.”

M5. LICCIOLlI explained that "care" was renoved and "insurance"
was added by an anmendnent so the |language currently reads
"heal th insurance industry.”

8:46: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated she generally supports the bill
She recalled a sunset provision applies to the Alaska Health
Care Comm ssion (AHCC) and asked if it was the sponsor's
intention to have the conmi ssion to serve indefinitely, but the
pur pose of the sunset provision is to provide a periodic review
of the comm ssi on.

8:47:35 AM

M5. LICCICOLlI referred to page 7, line 31, to the June 30, 2014
sunset provi sion.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if the sponsor's intent was to
reauthorize the AHCC or if it would be a short-term conm ssi on.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- April 14, 2010



M5. LICCQOLI answered that the prinme sponsor, Senator { son,
does not necessarily want to direct the legislature in this

matter. He recognizes the task of inplenenting health care
reformis a conplex issue and acknow edged the |egislature could
choose to extend the comm ssion. However, the sponsor also

recogni zes that it is possible that the AHCC could be finished
with its work by 2014. Additionally, it is possible that sone
additional changes may be needed. Thus, the prine sponsor
wanted a shorter sunset date to allow the legislature tine to
review and determ ne the outcone based on events as they unfold.

8:49: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES pointed out that the proposed AHCC has
staggered three-year terns, which indicates it may be an ongoi ng
commi ssion, which she said she did not have any objection to but
noted the staggered dates tend to indicate the role my be
| onger.

M5. LICCICOLI surmsed that the prine sponsor would be surprised
if work was conpleted at end of sunset date, which is why the
terms are staggered terns. However, given the adoption of
health care reform at the national level, it may take tinme for
policy inpacts to trickle down to Alaska. The current |anguage
would provide the legislature the opportunity to review the
pr ogr ess.

8:50: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 2, line 3, which she said
would give the departnent the ability to develop, adopt, and
i npl enent a statewi de health plan based on the recomendations
of the proposed Al aska Health Care Conm ssion (AHCC). She asked
what the legislature's role would be and if the AHCC woul d nake
recommendations and the department would inplenment them or if
further |egislative review would be required.

WARD B. HURLBURT, MD., Drector and Chief Medical Oficer,
Division of Public Health (DPS), Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), stated that the AHCC, as it 1is currently
functions, views itself as nmaking reconmendations to |egislature
and to the governor to develop plans. Thus, before a health
pl an woul d be adopted, the AHCC would work in collaboration with
the legislature and the adm nistration. He related he is "one
of the world's |argest skeptics on conm ssions.”" He said he has
been inpressed with the AHCC s work thus far. He thought the
sunset provision would give the AHCC an opportunity to truly

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- April 14, 2010



denponstrate its worth and if it did not do so, it should not be
ext ended.

8:53:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES pointed to page 5, |line 11, to the
di scl osure fornms required. She asked if there are any problens
wi th nedical ethics under the required disclosure. She did not
want to set up an instance that caused a nedical professional to
breach their nedical ethics.

DR. HURLBURT deferred to Representative Holnmes as an attorney,
but related fromhis own experience he did not see any problem

8:55:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 5, line 24, and asked for
the definition of enhanced market forces.

DR. HURLBURT replied that the intent would be to exam ne the
| everage of purchasing to ensure "that you get your noney's
worth at the $6 billion that we're spending. The 18 percent of
the GDP now is just a huge anount of our national resource. W
woul d want to nake sure the services that we get for that really
are supported by the science; that they are purchased
efficiently and effectively."”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES reflected that this conm ssion appeared to
be a full tinme job.

CO CHAIR KELLER remarked that the challenge is "so huge." He
related that there is virtually no one in the health care
industry that is not concerned. He suggested that he has not

heard anything negative about actions taken that address the
cost in a responsible way and also increase access to quality
care. He remarked that the conm ssioners' passion has been
i npr essi ve.

8:57:13 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON suggested that the departnment has
experti se. She referred to the fiscal note and inquired as to
whet her anyone currently performng the functions could take
over as executive director rather than to hire a new person.

DR. HURLBURT responded that the executive director's position is
a full-tinme position. This person would serve as a public

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- April 14, 2010



entity to serve to react to health care reform Addi tionally,
the departnent does not have the expertise to provide sone
anal yses on health care reform such as a health care econom st.

Some national analyses will be available through organizations
such as Covington & Burley and Henry J. Kaiser Famly
Foundation, but the state wll also need to acquire state-

specific analysis to address health care reform which could be
provided by outside contracts, such as the University of
Al aska's Institute of Social and Econom c Research (1 SER)

8:59: 04 AM

M5. LICCIQOLI said the AHCC has "a lot of work"” to acconplish

She was unsure of their needs but she could say that at |[east
one full-time staff person would be necessary, given that the
ot her comm ssion nenbers are doing other work. The AHCC nenbers
are essentially "volunteers." It is envisioned that one full-
time person would conduct research and would interact and
prepare materials so the commssion nenbers' tine would be
m nim zed. She related that it already takes significant tine
just to prepare for and attend neetings. She stated that
wi thout a dedicated staff person the conm ssion's work would be
hanper ed.

9:00:41 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said many issues wll need to be
addressed. She suggested that perhaps a staff nenber could work
on the issues as opposed to hiring an executive director. She

expressed concern about addi ng anot her $500, 000 to the budget.

M5. LICCIOLlI related that the departnent and Dr. Hurl burt would
need to answer with respect to resources.

CO-CHAIR KELLER said he would like to have them available to
answer questions.

9:01: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA offered her belief that the conmm ssion's
work woul d cover every departnent in the state since they have
their "fingers in the health pie." All state enployees are
affected since they receive pay and health insurance. Thus,
"billions of dollars are really inpacted by this comm ssion."
She indicated that data collection has been cut back so the
state cannot conpare itself to a lot of other states. Thi s
comm ssion could offer a financial savings to the state.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- April 14, 2010



"Underfunding is usually the '"kiss of death' for business", she
sai d. She stated that the executive director needs to be a
person "that keeps the glue in place."

9:04:10 AM

DR. HURLBURT agreed with Representative Cissna's comments. He
said the need for the comm ssion has beconme nore acute with the
passage of federal health care reform Health care inpacts
everyone. He stated that the departnent does need resources to
keep the conm ssion ongoing. Resources were not provided the
first year the AHCC operated. Thus, it has been an "unfunded
mandat e. " He suggested that his division needs to be involved
in preventative health and needs to be held accountable. He
specul ated that on a day-to-day basis the AHCC will be working
on "nmedical <care cost issues” since the bill charges the
comm ssion to develop a strategy for inproving the health of all
residents of the state to encourage personal responsibility for
di sease prevention, healthy living, and acquisition of health
i nsur ance.

9:06: 11 AM

M5. LICCIOLI said that the fiscal note shares the cost with the
federal governnment so other federal prograns will be billed
since the progranms will benefit fromthe commi ssion's work. The
full fiscal inpact wll not come from general fund (GF),

al t hough nore than half the cost is G- funding.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON referred to the fiscal note funding
t hat indicates $500,000 fromthe general fund (GF).

W LDA LAUGHLI N, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), explained the
fiscal note was updated on April 13, 2010 to show federal
recei pts of $165,000 and GF match of $335,000. The fiscal note
also reflects the additional person to reflect the additional
commi ssi on nmenbership, which totals 13 nenbers.

9: 08: 55 AM
VWAYNE STEPHENS, President and CEO Al aska State Chanmber O

Commerce, stated he has served on the Al aska Health Care
Comm ssion (AHCC) for the past year. He expressed support for

t he AHCC. He noted the increase in health care costs and
premuns has created a significant burden on businesses and
enpl oyers. The health care personnel workforce shortage has

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- April 14, 2010



reduced access for seniors and other Al askans. Al aska's health
care system needs adjustnents and there are not any quick fixes.
The best first step is to address pressing health care issues is
to permanently establish the AHCC, conprised of experts and
representatives of key stakeholders in the state. The AHCC w ||
make recomendations to the legislature to realign and redesign
the system The tenporary AHCC, established by executive order,
expired this year but began to consider relevant issues
i ncludi ng coverage, cost, access, quality, work force, health
i nformation t echnol ogy, primary care safety net, cost
transparency, prevention, personal responsibility, but the short
timeframe is inadequate to address the conplex issues to the
degree needed. The Al aska State Chanber of Commerce supports
the establishment in statute of the AHCC to recomend
conprehensive statewide health and health care policy to the
governor and |legislature that wll result in a health care
systemthat provides quality and affordable access to Al askans.

9:11:16 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked how nany nenbers serve on the
AHCC.

MR. STEPHENS replied seven plus the three ex-officio nenbers.
9:11:42 AM

MR. BRIAN SAYLOR, Ph.D., Retired, stated he retired from the
University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA) and has previously served
as the deputy conm ssioner, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) and as the director, Al aska Psychiatric
I nstitute. He spoke in support of SB 172 and in recognition of
the conplexity of the health care system One el enent that he
t hought would warrant additional attention and would strengthen
the bill is the extent to which the public health enterprise can
reduce costs and inprove people's health by reducing the demand
for services. He stated that the element is suggested in the
bill but should be nmade very explicit. He comented that
Representative C ssna has a copy of an anmendnent he prepared
that woul d address this issue. He stated that demand reduction
that cones as a direct result of preventive activities of public
heal th, which go beyond individual responsibility and are nore
consistent with Article 7, of the Alaska State Constitution that
argues we pronote and protect the public health. Those things
have been shown repeatedly to have a marked effect to reduce the
demand for medical care. He explained that the bill currently
focuses nmore on the delivery of health services to reduce costs.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- April 14, 2010



H s strong reconmendation is public health be explicitly noted
in the bill. He offered his belief that this would add a
wel cone additional elenent to the study of our health care
system Currently, the health care system consists of health
care services delivery rather than one that addresses overall
heal t h. He thought the addition of public health would "go a
long way to correct that."

9:14: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA t hanked Dr. Sayl or. She recalled a prior
study that suggested cost reductions could be achieved by
providing care at the point a person devel ops a chronic disease,
to help themto get better and stop the growth of disease. She
asked whether such a study could be nmde available to the
| egi sl ature and new y-convened comm Sssi on.

DR. SAYLOR pointed out that extensive literature on the inpact
of health pronotion and disease reduction, not only anong
corporations, where the return on investnent is astonishing, but
in the public, in general. He thought that the comm ssion would
add attention to public health infrastructure. He said he would
be happy to help in any way he can to provide additional
i nformati on.

9:16:42 AM

DEB ERI CKSON, Executive Director, Alaska Health Care Conm ssion
(AHCC), explained that the workload has substantially increased
wi th passage of the federal health care |aws. She recalled an
overview on the legislation, which added over a thousand pages
of federal |aw She offered her belief that the law wll
fundanmentally change the nethod of delivery for health care in
Al aska. The AHCC has been working to nore effectively and
efficiently organize funding and delivery of health care in
Al aska. She related the AHCC will work to understand the new
federal |aw. She understood an anendnment nay be considered.
She offered her view that a strong delivery system nust rest on
a foundation of prevention and a strong public health system
As duties are added, it could potentially "water down" the
AHCC s mission. She reiterated Dr. Hurlburt's coments that the
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) does not have
the expertise it needs w thout obtaining additional resources.
Her position was created as essentially a non-permanent fully
exenpt position that is not in the budget. She suggested that
if the fiscal note were to be "stripped" that her position would
i kely disappear. Prior to taking this position, she worked for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- April 14, 2010



about 25 years with the DHSS. Thus, speaking from experience if
the bill passed wi thout funding the DHSS would not be able to
acquire necessary expertise through consultants. She specul ated
that if that were to happen, the level of work product would
suffer. She speculated that mght translate into the conmm ssion
issuing a staff report and holding several "teleconferenced"
commi ssi on neetings. She brought wup two things to note.
Supporting the executive director position created budget issues
for the departnent. The AHCC developed a detailed public
communi cation and engagenent strategy that could not be
i npl enented due to a |ack of resources. Thus, the conmm ssion
was not able to engage or interact with the public to a greater
extent and was l|less transparent than it could have been if it
had been funded.

9:23: 02 AM

CO CHAIR KELLER stated the AHCC, which he had the privilege of
serving on, was established by an executive order that also gave

the comm ssion the authority to hire an executive director. He
asked to place on the record that he has profound respect and
appreciation for M. Erickson's work. He said the conmm ssion
woul d not have been successful wthout her. He said, "I've

beconme one of your greatest fans."

9:24:14 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony on SB 172.
9:24: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, |abeled 26-
LSO790\ CA. 1, which read as foll ows:

Page 6, |ine 4:
Del ete "and"
Page 6, line 6, follow ng "services":
| nsert “;
(G determines the resources needed by

local and state governnents to protect the public
heal t h; and

(H assesses the effect of inproved health
status on the cost of health care"

CO CHAI R KELLER obj ected for purpose of discussion

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- April 14, 2010



9:25:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expl ai ned that proposed Anendnent 1 woul d
add two paragraphs to the services and duties of the conm ssion.
She stated that it follows the discussion of persona
responsibility and preventative nedicine. She stated that the
constitution looks at primary prevention and determ ning the
resources needed by local and state governnents. She suggest ed
that proposed Anendnent 1 should state "pronote and protect”
since those terns are in Alaska' s constitution. She offered her
belief that state government should put its efforts into keeping
peopl e heal t hy. Currently, people often enter the health care
system when they are Medicare eligible and go to the energency
room for treatnent, which is the npbst expensive provider. Thus,
people enter the nost expensive part of the system becone
Medicaid eligible, and continually are treated for illness or
di sease. This becones a "huge driver"” of the "huge debt" in the
state and absorbs the departnent's resources. She advocated for
Alaska to review the needs and assess the effect of inproved
health status to ensure noney is spent in the nbst cost

effective manner rather than waiting until sick people are
eligible for Medicare before their problens enmerge. She further
advocated striving for a healthier population. Thi s | anguage

provides a different focus and a nore refined way of view ng
health care that "builds health.”

9: 30: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES of fered her support for proposed Anendnent
1. She agreed that prevention is not clearly spelled out and
the need for prevention, such as for immnizations, anti-
obesity, and life style changes and should be in the purview of
t he AHCC.

9:31: 47 AM

CO CHAIR KELLER thought the conments were good comments. He
objected to Anendnent 1 since it is already included in SB 172.
He referred to page 5, line 19-31, which outlines the duties of
the comm ssion. He read subsection (a)(2)(A), "encourages
personal responsibility for disease prevention, healthy I|iving,
and acquisition of health insurance;."” He expressed concern
with paragraph (H) to "assessing the effect of inproved health
status..." He stated that the state wants to encourage
prevention for healthy living, which the AHCC supports and while
Amendnment 1 is not harnful, that specificity mght cause
conf usi on.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- April 14, 2010



9:33:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA said that state spends nobre noney on
getting people famliar with Medicaid than on the effort to
break |earned habits, sonme through expensive advertising. The
private sector has its rights but the state's role is to help
peopl e break habits.

CO CHAI R KELLER rmai ntai ned his objection. He felt the issue is
al ready cover ed.

CO CHAI R KELLER reopened public testinony on SB 172.
9: 35: 20 AM

MS. ERICKSON referred to proposed Anendnent 1. She opined that
she agreed that paragraph (H) is already addressed in the
current duties on page 5, in subparagraph (A),(B), and on page 6
in subparagraph (C), which she reviewed. The one thing that
subparagraph (H) addresses that may not be recognized by a
further AHCC or is not reflected in the duties outlined in SB
172, is the role of local and state governnent for public
heal t h.

CO CHAI R KELLER asked whether the |anguage in subparagraph (Q
woul d create a burden for the AHCC

M5. ERI CKSON responded that under the current fiscal note, the
AHCC woul d not have resources to address subparagraph (G, but
she imagi ned the conm ssion could address in nore general terns
the role of local and state governnents with respect to public
heal t h. She remarked that the task is huge that this |anguage
woul d add one nore duty for AHCC to prioritize.

9: 38: 44 AM
REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked for the bill sponsor's coment.

M5. LICCOLI reported she discussed a previous version of the

anendnent wth Senator d son. She said he believes that
proposed Amendnent 1 would not be harnful, but that the current
duties are already covered in the bill. She said he expressed

slight concern with the |anguage "resources needed by |ocal
government" since nunerous |ocal governnents exist in Al aska and
the resource needs vary between |ocal governnents. She
suggested that it may be better to list "what we want to

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- April 14, 2010



acconplish" and allow the local and state governnents to
identify the resources.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON commented that the conm ssion could
al ways add these requirenents at a | ater date.

9:40: 33 AM

M5. LICCOLI said she thought the sponsor would agree. She
restated that he did not think the proposed Amendnent 1 was
harnful, but believes the commssion already is working to
acconplish the tasks.

9:40: 55 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER recl osed public testinony on SB 172.

9:41: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA offered her strong support for proposed
Amendnent 1. She explained that she has been a legislator for
12 years. She has observed ill nesses and health problens nove

from adult problens to problens that increasingly affect youth
She expressed concern that the mpjority of Alaska' s youth have

devel oped poor habits that wll translate to a dimnished
quality of life as adults. She said, "That's really frightening
to ne." She said that the legislature nust think differently if
it wants to solve the problens. She pointed out that she has

visited 60 communities and has found that |ocal governnents are
accessi bl e. She offered that having a conmm ssion ask questions
and having communities know that soneone will |isten "would be a
huge thing."

9:43: 42 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER mai nt ai ned hi s objection

9:44: 03 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Ci ssna and Hol nes
voted in favor of Anmendnent 1. Representatives T. WIson, Lynn
Keller voted against it. Therefore, Amendnment 1 failed by a

vote of 3-2.

9:44: 54 AM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- April 14, 2010



CO CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony on SB 172.

LI Z CLEMENT, Staff to Representative Bob Herron, Alaska State
Legislature, related that the anendnent that the sponsor would
have offered is one that may be offered by Representative T.
W1l son and not Amendnent 1, which fail ed.

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony on SB 172.
9:45: 59 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON noved Conceptual Anmendnent 2 [ abel ed
Amendnent #1], which read [original punctuation provided]:

Amend/ repl ace Sec. 18/ 09. 040 wit h:

"The conm ssion nay appoint an executive director, who
may not be a nenber of the comm ssion, and who shal
be current staff of the departnent. Al'l  comm ssion
research and supplenental work shall be acconplished
with departnent resources and collaboration between
conm ssi on menbers. "

CO CHAI R KELLER obj ected for the purpose of discussion
9:46: 15 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON expressed concern wth the initia
fiscal note that added an executive director. She said she was
even nore concerned with the subsequent fiscal note that added
two positions. She re-read proposed Conceptual Amendnent 2 and
gave the rationale for the amendnent. She stated that this
amendnent would allow the conmmssion the flexibility to
determine its staffing needs and workl oad. She said she changed
the | anguage to "may appoint” and the comm ssion can determ ne
their needs. The comm ssion will utilize the expertise of the
department and nmaxinm ze existing departnent resources. She
mai nt ai ned her concern about "adding nore people.” She offered
her belief that this commssion is a "good thing." She
reiterated her concern that the fiscal note indicated the
conmi ssion would hire soneone at $134,000 and a second person at
$58, 000, which is her source of objection.

9:48: 04 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER rmai ntai ned his objection. He said that nuch of
the comm ssion's cost is paid for by the federal governnent.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- April 14, 2010



CO CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony on SB 172.
9:48: 50 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from9:48 a.m to 9:50 a. m

9:50: 05 AM
CO CHAI R KELLER asked about the |anguage in proposed Conceptua
Amrendnent 2, to the second "shall". He suggested the | anguage
read "my".

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON agreed to the <change to proposed
Conceptual Anendnent 2. She recalled a question was raised
whet her a person could be hired if the person currently filling
the position resigned. She answered that the position currently
exists and if the executive director resigned the departnent
could fill the position. She agreed that "may" also provides
the departnent with nore flexibility.

9:51:13 AM

CO- CHAIR KELLER asked for clarification on whether proposed
Conceptual Amendnment 2, would replace AS 18.09.040 in its
entirety.

Representative T. WIson answered yes.

CO CHAIR KELLER asked whether Representative T. WIson intended
that the "comm ssion shall establish the duties of the executive
director.™ He said he did not see the |anguage in Conceptua
Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES suggested just replacing the first
sent ence.

9:52: 14 AM

CO CHAIR KELLER opened public testinony. He clarified that
Conceptual Anendnent 2 would delete the first sentence on page
4, line 20-21, which read, "The comm ssion shall enploy an

executive director, who may not be a nenber of the comm ssion.”
Conceptual Anmendnent 2 would replace sentence one wth the

follow ng: "The conm ssion may appoint an executive director,
who may not be a nenber of the conmm ssion and who may be current
staff of the departnent. Al conmm ssion research and

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- April 14, 2010



suppl erment al work  shall be acconplished wth departnent
resources and col | aborati on bet ween conmmi ssi on nenbers.”

REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON agr eed.
V. LI CC ALl stated that from her experience in the

adm nistration, that the existing position is a non-permnent
position since the departnment did not have funding at the tine

the comm ssion was established. Thus, the executive director
position will "go away." She recalled Representative T. WIson
mentioning the departnent "has a position.” However, the
position wll only be tenporary and w thout approval of an

addi tional position, the departnent would need to reassign an
exi sting position.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON offered her belief that changing the
wording from"shall" to "may" would allow the position to becone
per manent . She said that Conceptual Amendnent 2 does not force
the departnent to hire an executive director.

9:55:29 AM

CO CHAIR KELLER referred to page 4, line 20-22. He related that
after the first sentence, following "nenber of the conm ssion”
t hat Conceptual Anmendnent 2 woul d be inserted, which he read:

The comm ssion may appoint an executive director, who
may not be a nenber of the comm ssion and who may be
current staff of the departnent. Al'l  comm ssion
research and supplenmental work shall be acconplished
with departnent resources and collaboration between
conmmi ssi on nenbers.”

CO CHAIR KELLER asked whether the departnent approves of the
| anguage in proposed Conceptual Amendnment 2, noting the short
noti ce.

M5. LAUGHLIN replied that she could not answer and deferred to
Dr. Hurlburt.

CO CHAIR KELLER asked for the inpact of proposed Conceptual
Amendnment 2 on the fiscal note.

9:57:19 AM

JILL LEWS, Deputy Director - Juneau, D vision of Public Health
(DPS), Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), reported

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- April 14, 2010



the status of the current executive director position. She
explained that at the tinme the commssion was created the
request for funding for an executive director was nmade in the
budget process and not the enabling |egislation. The position
was not appropri ated. Thus, the position does not technically
exist and the DPS is absorbing the cost for the unbudgeted
position. To remedy this issue, the legislature needs to
appropriate the noney for the position and add the position in
the fiscal note. She reiterated that the DPS currently absorbs
t he cost.

9:59: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES advised that the first sentence of
proposed Conceptual Anendnent 2 would give discretion to the
depart nment. She suggested that the second sentence nay cause
confusi on on whether the position could be reauthorized.

CO CHAIR KELLER agreed that restricting the research and
suppl emental work to departnent resources was problematic since
the commssion may wsh to use private industry for sone
research.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON surmsed that the departnent had
budgeted funds for outside research so it probably has a neans
to use consultants.

10: 01: 25 AM

CO-CHAIR KELLER clarified that this refers to the conm ssion,
not the departnent. Thus, the AHCC may wsh to draw in
addi ti onal sources.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES agr eed. She commented that it was not
likely the intention, but the proposed | anguage woul d hanper the
conm ssion in accepting federal funding or private funding
resour ces.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON interjected that "collaboration between
commi ssion nenbers” would provide flexibility. She asked why
t he second staff was requested.

M5. LEWS responded that the executive director of the AHCC has
been asked to be the lead of the inter-departnental team which
will dramatically increase the workl oad. The position would be
an ongoi ng position.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- April 14, 2010



REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked whether this position is outside
t he scope of board.

MS. LEWS said it was not, since it is within the charter of the
Al aska Health Care Conmm ssi on.

10: 04: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA remarked the funding is comng from the
di vision that does preventative work, which neans fewer people
will be available to do the work. She said it is inportant to
keep the DPS budget intact. She offered her belief that it wll
save enornous amounts of noney if the AHCC can do its work.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said she wanted to ensure that the
departnment's talents are utilized and the intent is not to
"short fund anybody or to say it's not inportant, but is to nake
sure we're utilizing the people in the best way that we can.”
She said she just wants to ensure that the state is not
conplicating the matter with a board and nore staff involved.
She agreed that having the comm ssion in place is "great." She
did not want to stand in the way.

10: 06: 42 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER asked whether Dr. Hurlburt would like to conmment
on proposed Conceptual Amendnent 2.

DR. HURLBURT expressed concerned to keep the costs as |low as
possible and still "get the job done.” He related that the
federal health care reformw || provide sone anal yses. However,
what is lacking in expertise and resources is the health
econom ¢ anal ysi s. The commission will need to contract for
that expertise and anal ysis. Thus, funding wll be needed to
provi de expertise on sone of the Al aska specific aspects of
health care reform The AHCC brought in Dr. Donald Pathman,

University of North Carolina, as a consultant. He is an expert
on loan repaynents and incentives, to assist Alaska to bring
providers into the state. He related that the state of

Wsconsin established an agency to respond to health care
reform He remarked that the departnent envisions the job of
responding to the federal health care reformw || be a huge job.
The departnent hopes that using the AHCC will bring efficiencies
to work with the intra-state governnment departnental group. He
concluded that the DPH is trying to be sensitive to the concerns
t hat have been expressed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- April 14, 2010



10: 09: 32 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON wanted to clarify that this is not a
new concept that the departnment contracts out for expertise.
She said she did not have a problem dropping the second
sent ence. She reiterated that issues currently arise in which
t he departnent obtains expertise.

10: 10: 05 AM

CO CHAI R KELLER expl ained that proposed Conceptual Amendnent 2
would replace the first sentence of AS 18.09.040 wth the
| anguage, "The comm ssion may enploy an executive director, who
may not be a nenber of the comm ssion, and who may be current
staff of the departnent."”

CO CHAI R KELLER renoved his objection
CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony on SB 172.

10:11: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES noved to report CSSB 172(Fin) am as
anended, out of committee wth individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

There being no objection, HCS CSSB 172(HSS) was reported from
the Health and Social Services Standing Commttee.

10: 11: 46 AM

ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 10:11 a. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- April 14, 2010



